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REGION 4 

"1- CJ 
~ ... 
~"'1- ~ )"... ,p 

( PA01~C 

Certified Mail 
Return Receipt Requested 

David Shankman, President 
Registered Agent 
Mineral Life Int'l, Inc. 
6732 SW 71 Court 
Miami, Florida 33143-3022 

ATLANTA FEDERAL CENTER 
61 FORSYTH STREET 

ATLANTA, GEORGIA 30303-8960 

!S' () 6 1011 

Re: Consent Agreement and Final Order 
In the Matter of Mineral Life Int'l, Inc. 
Docket No. CAA-04-2011-1526(b) 

Dear Mr. Shankman: 

Enclosed is a copy of the ratified Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAFO) in the above referenced 
matter. The original CAFO has been filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk as directed in Section 
22.05(a) of the Consolidated Rules of Practice, as amended. Please refer to Section IV (Final Order), for 
the terms and instructions regarding Mineral Life Int'l, Inc.'s, final payment on the penalty due. Any 
questions regarding the processing of Mineral Life Int'l, Inc.'s penalty may be directed to 
Mr. Bryson Lehman, Financial Management Office, at (513) 487-2123. 

If you have any other questions, please contact Mr. Chetan Gala of the South Air Enforcement Section 
at (404) 562-9746. 

Enclosure 

Sincerely, 

--· ,. ..-:---
:J];A<-4/ -1( ~~~ ----

• ( (i I 

Beverly A. Spagg 
Chief, Air & EPCRA Enforcement Branch 
Air, Pesticides and Toxics 
Management Division 

lntemet Address (URL) • http://www.epa.gov 
Recycled/Recyclable • Printed wrth Vegetable Oil Based Inks on Recycled Paper (Minimum 30% Postconsumer) 



UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
REGION4 

IN THE MATTER OF: 

Mineral Life Int'l, Inc. 

Miami, Florida 
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Docket No. CAA-04-2011-1526(b) 
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Respondent ____________________ ) 

CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER 

I. Nature of the Action/Jurisdictional Statements 
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1. This is a civil penalty proceeding pursuant to Section 113(d) of the Clean Air Act (CAA or 
the Act), 42 U.S.C. § 7413(d), and pursuant to the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing 
Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties and the Revocation/Termination or Suspension 
of Permits (Consolidated Rules), codified at Title 40 Code ofFederal Regulations 
(40 C.F.R.) Part 22, for alleged violations of Section 183(e) of the Act, as amended, 
42 U.S.C. § 7511b(e). 

2. Complainant is the Director ofthe Air, Pesticides and Toxics Management Division, 
Region 4, United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). Respondent is Mineral 
Life Int'l, Inc. (hereinafter, "Respondent"). Respondent owns and operates an architectural 
coatings manufacturing facility located at 6732 SW 71 Court, Miami, Florida 33143-3022. 

3. Consistent with Section 113(d)(l) ofthe CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(d)(1), the requisite joint 
determination has been made by EPA and the United States Department of Justice that this 
matter is appropriate for administrative penalty action. 

4. Complainant and Respondent have conferred for the purpose of settlement pursuant to 
40 C.F.R. § 22.18 and desire to resolve this matter and settle the allegations described herein 
without a formal hearing. Therefore, without the taking of any evidence or testimony, the 
making of any argument, or the adjudication of any issue in this matter, and in accordance 
with 40 C.F.R. § 22.13(b), this Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAFO) will 
simultaneously commence and conclude this matter. 

5. The authority to take action under Section 113(d) ofCAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(d), is vested in 
the Administrator of EPA. The Administrator of EPA has delegated this authority under the 
CAA to the Regional Administrators by EPA Delegation 7-6-A. The Regional Administrator, 
Region 4, has re-delegated this authority to the Director, Air, Pesticides, and Toxics 
Management Division, by EPA Region 4 Delegation 7-6-A. Pursuant to that delegation, the 
Director of the Air, Pesticides and Toxics Management Division has the authority to 
commence an enforcement action as the Complainant in this matter. 
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6. Respondent is a "person" as defined in CAA § 302(e), 42 U.S.C. § 7602(e). 

7. Respondent is a corporation whose main business is the manufacture and/or distribution of 
architectural coatings and is therefore subject to the requirements of 40 C.F.R. Part 59, 
Subpart D. 

8. Respondent is a "manufacturer" and/or "importer" of architectural coatings as defined at 
40 C.F.R. § 59.401. 

9. Respondent's corporate headquarters is located at: 6732 SW 71 Court, Miami, Florida 
33143-3022. 

10. The federal regulations implementing Section 183 of the CAA describe reporting 
requirements for manufacturers and/or importers of architectural coatings. The reporting 
requirements include a mandate that each manufacturer and importer of any architectural 
coating shall submit an initial notification report no later than September 13, 1999, or within 
180 days after the date that the first architectural coating is manufactured or imported, 
whichever is later. See 40 C.F.R. §§ 59.400, 59.408(b). 

11. Pursuant to Section 113(d) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7413 (d), and 40 C.F.R. Part 19, EPA 
may assess a penalty of not more than $27,500 per day for each violation that occurred on or 
after January 31, 1997, not more than $32,500 per day for each violation that occurred after 
March 15,2004, and not more than $37,500 per day for each violation that occurred after 
January 12, 2009. 

II. Factual Allegations 

12. Upon information and belief, Mineral Life Int'l, Inc., failed to comply with the initial 
notification requirements from September 13, 1999 (the point at which the federal 
regulations first required notification) until May, 2010. In accordance with 40 C.F.R. 
§ 59 .408(b ), notice was due to EPA by Mineral Life Int'l, Inc., on or about September 13, 
1999, since Mineral Life Int'l, Inc., was in existence and manufacturing architectural 
coatings prior to this date. Therefore, Mineral Life Int'l, Inc., violated the initial notification 
requirements ofthe federal regulations at 40 C.F.R. § 59.408. 

13. On or about May 3, 2010, in response to an information request letter sent by EPA pursuant 
to Section 114 ofthe Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7414, Mineral Life Int'l, Inc., provided EPA with the 
initial notification report. 
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III. Consent Agreement 

14. For the purposes of this CAFO, Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations in 
paragraphs 1 through 11 set out above, but neither admits nor denies the factual allegations in 
paragraphs 12 through 13 set out above. 

15. As provided in 40 C.F.R. § 22.18(b )(2), for the purposes of this proceeding, Respondent 
waives its right to a hearing on the allegations contained herein. 

16. Respondent certifies that as of the date of its execution of this CAFO, it is in compliance with 
the compliance requirements of 40 C.F.R. Part 59, Subpart D, for the period from June 1, 
2010 through May 31,2011. 

17. Compliance with this CAFO shall resolve the allegations of violations contained herein and 
known to the EPA at this time. This CAFO shall not otherwise affect any liability of 
Respondent to the United States. Other than as expressed herein, neither EPA nor 
Complainant waives any right to bring an enforcement action against Respondent for 
violation of any federal or state statue, regulation or permit, to initiate an action for imminent 
and substantial endangerment, or to pursue criminal enforcement for allegations of violations 
not contained in this CAFO. 

18. Complainant and Respondent agree to settle this matter by their execution of this CAFO. 
The parties agree that the settlement of this matter is in the public interest and that this CAFO 
is consistent with the applicable requirements of the CAA. 

IV. Final Order 

19. Respondent shall pay a civil penalty of Three Hundred and Seventy Five Dollars 
($375.00). 

20. Respondent shall pay the penalty within 30 days of the effective date of the CAFO by 
forwarding a cashier's or certified check in the amount specified in paragraph 19, payable to: 
"Treasurer, United States of America," to the following address: 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Fines and Penalties 
Cincinnati Finance Center 
P.O. Box 979077 
St. Louis, MO 63197-9000 
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The check shall reference on its face the name of the Respondent and the Docket 
Number of the CAFO (Mineral Life Int'l, Inc., Docket Number CAA-04-2011-
1526(b)) 

Alternatively, within 30 days of the effective date of the CAFO, Respondent shall pay the 
penalty by wire transfer. The wire transfer shall be directed to the Federal Reserve Bank of New 
York, as described below. 

Federal Reserve Bank ofNew York 
ABA: 021030004 
Account Number: 68010727 
SWIFT address: FRNYUS33 
33 Liberty St. 
New York, NY 10045 
Field Tag 4200 of the Fedwire message should read: 
"D 68010727 Environmental Protection Agency" 

The wire transfer shall reference the name of the Respondent and the Docket 
Number of the CAFO (Mineral Life Int'l, Inc., Docket Number CAA-04-2011-
1526(b)). 

21. At the time of the payment, Respondent shall send a separate copy of the check or send a 
copy of the wire transfer authorization form and transaction record, and a written statement 
that payment has been made in accordance with this CAFO, to the following persons at the 
following addresses: 

Regional Hearing Clerk 
U.S. EPA- Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303-8960 

Chetan Gala 
Air, Pesticides and Toxics Management Division 
Air and EPCRA Enforcement Branch 
U.S. EPA- Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

Saundi Wilson (OEA) 
U.S. EPA- Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 
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22. Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717, EPA is entitled to assess interest and penalties on debts owed 
to the United States and a charge to cover the cost of processing and handling a delinquent 
claim. Interest will therefore begin to accrue on the payment referenced in paragraph 19, 
from the date of entry of this CAFO, if any such payment is not paid by the date required. 
Interest will be assessed at the rate of the United States Treasury tax and loan rate in 
accordance with 4 C.P.R.§ 102.13(c). A charge will be assessed to cover the costs of debt 
collection, including processing and handling costs and attorney fees. In addition, a penalty 
charge may be assessed on any portion of the debt that remains delinquent more than ninety 
(90) days after payment is due. 

23. The penalty described in paragraph 19, shall represent civil penalties assessed by 
Complainant within the meaning of section 162( t) of the Internal Revenue Code, 
26 U.S.C. § 162(t), and is not a tax-deductible expenditure for purposes offederallaw. 

24. Complainant and Respondent shall bear their own costs and attorney fees in this matter. 

25. This CAFO shall not relieve Respondent of its obligation to comply with all applicable 
provisions of federal, state, or local law, nor shall it be construed to be a ruling on, or 
determination of, any issue related to any federal, state, or local permit. 

26. This CAFO shall be binding upon the Respondent, its successors and assigns. 

27. Each undersigned representative of the parties to this CAFO certifies that he or she is fully 
authorized by the party represented to enter into this CAFO and legally bind that party to it. 

28. The following individual is authorized to receive service for EPA in this proceeding: 

Chetan T. Gala 
Air Enforcement and EPCRA Branch 
Air, Pesticides and Toxics Management Division 
U.S. EPA- Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanta, GA 30303 
( 404) 562-9746 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 
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V. Effective Date 

29. The effective date of this CAFO shall be the date on which the CAFO is filed with the 
Regional Hearing Clerk. 

AGREED AND CONSENTED TO: 

Miner! At~ 
By: ~ 

'' 
Date:~~ Z'f, ?.0\\ 

Name: T2o.v\d 5h~\<.W\~ 
Title:~~ 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

By: ~b4;:41·.~ Date: ?jfl--5 ko11 
~ir, Pesticides & Toxics Management Division 

EPA Region4 

0~ APPRZ AND SO ORDERED this 6 day of 

,{.,1 a...--- 6 - ~./1. .... 6 
> 

&-,2011. 

Susan B. Schuh 
Regional Judicial Officer 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that I have this day served a true and correct copy of the foregoing 

Consent Agreement and Final Order, In the Matter of: Mineral Life Int'l, Inc., Docket 

No. CAA-04-2011-1526(b), on the parties listed below in the manner indicated. 

Chetan T. Gala 
Air and EPCRA Enforcement Branch 
U.S. EPA, Region 4, APTMD 
61 Forsyth St., SW 
Atlanta, GA 30303 

Michiko Kono 

(Via EPA's internal mail) 

(Via EPA's internal mail) 
Office of Environmental Accountability 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
61 Forsyth St., SW 
Atlanta, GA 30303 

(Respondent) 

David Shankman, President 
Registered Agent 
Mineral Life Int'l., Inc. 
6732 SW 71 Ct. 
Miami, FL 33143-3022 

Date: Y /r /1/ . :; 

(Via Certified Mail, Return Receipt 
Requested) 

Belinda Johnso~cti 
U.S. EPA, Reg1on 4 
Atlanta Federal Center 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanta, GA 30303 
(404) 562-9686 

------Regional Hearing Clerk 



EPA ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE CONTROL NUMBER FORM 

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE ORIGINATING OfFICE: 
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(Name) (Dace) 

in tbe Region 4 • ORC • OEA at (404) 582.:9504 
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(Offtce) '0 (Telepboae Nlllllblr) 

Non-SF Judldal Order/Consad Decree Admlaistratlft Order/Coasat Ail Etiiita& 
USAO COLLECTS FMO COLLECTS PAYMENT 

SF Judfclal Order/COIIRtlt Decree 
OOJ COLLECtS 

Other Reca'fable 

This Is an oriciaal debt 

D OYerslpa BIDiat • CCIG Pacbae required: 
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0 OftrsiPt BUlla&· c• Pacbae aut nqulnd 

D Thllll a modlllc:adoa 

PAYEE: ({lp1cr(\.( f-~t Jn('f .llL 
(Name ol penoa and/or Company/Munidpality lllllkiDa tile pa:JIIIIIIl) 

The Total Dollar Amouat oltbe Recei•ablr. S_......,3u7 .... )'----· --------------
(II iastallmeaU. attadl schedule olliiiiOUids and respectlYe d• dllt& See Otbcr side ollbll fe~r"a) 

The Case Docket Number: CAh'l t~ )o II ( )d\. (b) 

TbeSite Specifk Superfund Accouat Number:----------------------

The Dtsipaaed Rea;ioaai/Hadquarten Prop-am omcr. _______ ....;... __________ _ 

·• ~: 

The lFMS ACCOUIIU Reainble Coatnl NUIIIIJer' II: Date ------
II you ba•e any questloas. plale call:_ . _ ol tbe Fiaaacial Maaapmeat SectiGII at: ....:.. 

DISTRD!VTION: 

A. J1JDICIAL ORDERS: Copill tl dlil roraa wilb aa ata.cbed copy oldie rroat pap oldie FINAL JUPICIAL ORDER 
5bould be ...... a.: 

t. Debt Tndlia& Ofllcw 
Eo~ Eat~ SediOII 
Deplll'taBit tl Jusdn RM 164'7 
P.O. a. 7611. lea ... Fnaldia Statioa 
Wllbblpla. D.C. 2IMt 
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l. 

OriJiaadal Ofllce (!AD) 
Desipaled .......... omc:e 

11. ADMINlST'RATTVE ORD£R5: CotJia ol tbia rorm witb an attached copy ol the Croat pap olthe Admillistnlin Order sbau.ld be to: 

l. 
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Oriliaaam. oma 
Rqioaal Heuina C1.n 

l. 
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Desipaled Prosnm omce 
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